COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT

between

MARION COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 103

and

OREGON SCHOOL EMPLOYEES ASSOCIATION/ AFT Local 6732, AFL-CIO on behalf of WOODBURN OSEA CHAPTER 25



Effective from July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2025

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Table of Contents	1
Preamble and Duration	2
ARTICLE 1 – Recognition	3
ARTICLE 2 – Negotiation of a Successor Agreement	4
ARTICLE 3 – Management Rights	5
ARTICLE 4 – Union Rights	7
ARTICLE 5 – Vacancies and Transfers	10
ARTICLE 6 – Layoff and Recall	11
ARTICLE 7 – Personnel Records	15
ARTICLE 8 – Separability of Provisions	16
ARTICLE 9 – Salary	17
ARTICLE 10 – Probationary Period.	23
ARTICLE 11 – Paid Leave	24
ARTICLE 12 – Leave Without Pay	29
ARTICLE 13 – Insurance	30
ARTICLE 14 – Grievance Procedure	33
ARTICLE 15 – Discipline	35
ARTICLE 16 - Work Hours and Other Working Conditions	36
ARTICLE 17 – Professional Development	38
ARTICLE 18 – Safety	39
ARTICLE 19 – Electronic Surveillance	40
ARTICLE 20 – Complete Agreement	41
APPENDIX A - Salary Schedule (7/1/22 to 6/30/23)	42
APPENDIX B - Salary Schedule (7/1/23 to 6/30/24)	43
APPENDIX C - Salary Schedule (7/1/24 to 6/30/25)	44
APPENDIX D – Grievance Form.	45

PREAMBLE AND DURATION

	This contract made and entered into, by the Oregon School Employees
	Association/AFT Local 6732, AFL-CIO, hereinafter referred to as "the Union" or "OSEA" on
	behalf of OSEA Chapter 25 and the Board of Education of Marion County School District 103,
	hereinafter referred to as "the Board" or "the District."
	MOTORIA CONTROL CONTRO
	The duration of this contract shall be from July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2025.
	The duration of this contract shall be from July 1, 2022 through Julie 30, 2023.
	All terms of this contract shall remain in full force and effect during said period of time.
	IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereby affix their signatures as of the date first above
	written.
	M M M M M M M M M M
\	
	OCEA CL. 25 P. 11 477
	OSEA Chapter 25 President/Bargaining Chairman - Board
	Committee Chair
	Jew Stun
	OSEA Field Representative/ Superintendent
	Chief Negotiator

ARTICLE 1 - RECOGNITION

Section 1. The Board recognizes the Union as sole and exclusive bargaining representative for all of the classified employees in the bargaining unit. The bargaining unit shall include all regular classified and all limited-term classified employees. Substitutes, confidential, licensed teachers, and supervisory employees are not included in the bargaining unit. Newly created classifications may be added to the unit by mutual agreement of the parties or, in the absence of such agreement, by the State of Oregon Employment Relations Board.

Section 2. Substitute and Limited-Term Defined. For the purpose of this Agreement, a substitute employee shall be defined as any employee called in to replace a regular employee on excused absences (i.e., sick leave, vacation, etc.) or hired for short-duration or one-time-only jobs, etc. A substitute employee may not be employed more than one hundred fifty (150) consecutive calendar days in one (1) position (exclusive of scheduled break periods). Any substitute employee whose employment exceeds one hundred fifty (150) consecutive calendar days (exclusive of scheduled break periods) in one (1) position shall thereafter be considered a limited-term employee for a specified duration and until a specified date as determined by the District.

A limited-term employee shall be: a) an employee hired to fill a position of extended duration greater than one hundred fifty (150) consecutive calendar days where the regular employee is on leave for the period of such leave; or b) any other employee who has been hired for a fixed period of time, but not to replace an absent regular employee, not to exceed eleven (11) months in duration.

Limited-term employees shall be subject to all the terms and conditions of this Agreement, except that upon completion of the assignment such employees shall be subject to termination without the layoff and recall rights of Article 6 of this Agreement. Termination of a limited-term employee upon completion of the assignment shall not be construed as a disciplinary action subject to Article 15 of this Agreement. Otherwise, a limited-term employee shall have all the protections of Article 15 of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 2 - NEGOTIATION OF A SUCCESSOR AGREEMENT

The parties agree to commence collective bargaining on a successor agreement subsequent to February 1 of the year of the expiration of this agreement and the parties shall endeavor to commence bargaining prior to the end of March of the same year.

ARTICLE 3 - MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

- Section 1. General Rights. Without limitation but by way of illustration, the exclusive prerogatives, functions, and rights of the District shall include the following:
 - a. To determine the services to be rendered to the citizens of the District.
 - b. To determine and to execute the District's financial, budgetary, and accounting procedures.
 - c. To direct and supervise all operations, functions, and policies in which the employees in the bargaining unit are employed, except as otherwise specifically provided for in this Agreement.
 - d. To manage and direct the workforce, including, but not limited to, the right to determine the methods, processes, and manner of performing work, subject to the specific provisions of this Agreement, the right to hire, promote, and retain employees and to transfer employees; the right to determine and to change from time to time the number of daily and weekly hours that an employee works; the right to lay off employees; the right to abolish positions or reorganize departments; and the right to determine schedules of work.
 - e. To purchase, dispose of, and assign equipment or supplies.
 - f. To establish, revise, and implement standards for hiring, classification, promotion, quality of work, safety, materials, and equipment except as otherwise specifically provided for in this Agreement.
 - g. To implement new and to revise or discard, wholly or in part, old methods, procedures, materials, equipment, facilities, and standards.
 - h. To assign shifts, work days, hours of work, and work locations.
 - i. To designate and to assign all work duties.
 - j. To introduce new duties within the unit.
 - k. To determine the need for and the qualifications of new employees, transfers, and promotions except as provided for herein.
 - 1. To train, discipline, suspend, demote, or discharge an employee except as provided for herein.
- Section 2. Hours and Job Duties. In the event the District determines the need to increase the number of assigned weekly work hours or to modify (by adding duties or removing established duties) the job duties of bargaining unit positions, the District shall notify the union. In the event the District determines the need to decrease the number of assigned weekly work hours the District shall notify the union and discuss the impact of such changes.

Section 3. Contracting and Subcontracting of Work. Notwithstanding the provisions of ORS 243.650 to 243.782 and provided no employee(s) will be laid off as defined in Article 6 of this Agreement, the Union recognizes that the District shall have the right to make and to implement decisions relative to the contracting and subcontracting of work as it may determine. If the contracting or subcontracting of work will result in the layoff of an employee(s), the District agrees upon timely demand from the Union to enter into and complete negotiations with the Union over the decision and impact of such contracting prior to its implementation.

The utilization of employees from other public entities, such as the Willamette Regional Education Service District or the State, as well as the utilization of students and of non-paid volunteers, shall not be considered contracting out and shall not serve as the basis for a claim of a violation of this Agreement or of the above-referenced ORS.

ARTICLE 4 - UNION RIGHTS

Section 1. In accordance with HB2016 (ORS 243) – Public Employee Rights and Benefits, the District shall provide the Chapter President and OSEA's Director of Fiscal Operations – <u>classified@osea.org</u> with an editable Excel spreadsheet containing the following information for each employee in the bargaining unit:

- a. The employee's name and date of hire;
- b. Contact information including:
 - cellular, home and work telephone numbers
 - personal and work electronic mail addresses; and
 - home or personal mailing address; and
- c. Employment information including the employee's job title, salary and worksite location.

The District shall provide the information within ten (10) calendar days from the date of hire for newly hired employee, and November 1, March 1, and June 30 of each year for employees in the bargaining unit who are not newly hired.

- 4.1 Each month, the District shall furnish the Chapter President and OSEA's Director of Fiscal Operations <u>classified@osea.org</u> a list of any employees covered by this agreement who terminate employment.
- 4.2 **Applications for Membership.** All applications for membership received by the District shall be forwarded to OSEA.
- 4.3 **Dues Deduction.** Any employee in the bargaining unit may authorize the District to deduct from his/her pay the amount of dues charged by OSEA. This authorization must be in writing by submission of a membership card and forwarded to OSEA. OSEA will send a copy to the District's Payroll Office.

Dues deduction shall begin on the first payroll period following such authorization. Unless otherwise provided in the dues authorization, dues authorizations shall remain effective and continue from each year to the next until the employee requests cancelation of OSEA membership in writing. OSEA will send a copy of the written cancelation of membership to the District's Payroll Office. Dues deducted by the District shall be remitted, together with an itemized statement to OSEA by the first day of the month after such deductions are made.

- 4.4 **Deduction for Voluntary Fees and Assessments**. Any employee in the bargaining unit may authorize the District to deduct from his/her pay voluntary fees, assessments, or contributions payable to OSEA pursuant to ORS 292.055. This authorization must be in writing by submission of a membership card and forwarded to the District's Payroll Office. Payroll deduction for voluntary fees, assessments, or contributions shall begin on the first payroll period following such authorization. Unless otherwise provided in the authorization, the authorization shall remain effective and continue from each year to the next until the employee revokes the authorization in writing.
- 4.5 **Indemnification**. OSEA shall indemnify and hold the District harmless from and against any claims, demands, suits, losses, costs and expenses, including but not limited to attorney fees,

incurred by the District as a result of action taken by the District in compliance with the terms and provisions of this Article.

Section 2. Information. When a Board agenda and/or other materials which are not exempt from disclosure are distributed to Board members and other interested parties in advance of a public meeting of the Board, such material shall also be provided to the OSEA Chapter 25 President.

When changes are made in the adopted Board policies or in the adopted administrative regulations, the OSEA Chapter 25 President shall be provided a copy of the change. Recognizing the Union has an interest in the development of policy which pertains directly to Union affairs, the District agrees to take into consideration any input the Union would choose to make.

Section 3. In-service Programs. The Union shall have the right to supply the Superintendent/designee information to assist him in developing in-service programs for classified employees. Development of in-service programs, however, and the content thereof shall remain the sole right of the District.

Section 4. Annual Conference. Except as may be limited by the operational needs of the District, Union delegates to the OSEA Annual Conference shall be granted time off without pay from their regular duties. Delegates shall notify the Superintendent's office as soon as possible and not less than ten (10) working days in advance of the Conference.

Section 5. Attendance at Meetings.

- a. Employees who are on duty when meetings are called by the Union may attend the meeting if the supervisor has determined that such attendance will not interfere with the employees' regular work and if arrangements have been made with the supervisor for make-up of time missed.
- b. Employees attending any joint District-Union meetings will not be required to make up time missed, and shall suffer no loss in salary or benefits.
- **Section 6.** Use of School Building. The Association shall have the right to transact official Association business on school district property, provided it does not interfere with or interrupt classes or other normal school and district operations and in accordance with Board policy. The Board may make a reasonable charge when special services are required beyond normal operation.
- Section 7. Use of School Equipment. The Union shall have the right to use school equipment when such equipment is not otherwise in use. The Union shall pay for the cost of all materials, supplies, and repairs incidental to such use.
- **Section 8.** Bulletin Board Space. The District shall provide bulletin board space for use by the Union in each facility in which employees work.
- **Section 9. Mail Facilities.** The District shall provide a mailbox for each employee. The Association may use the district mail boxes and regular courier service for communications of a routine nature so long as they are identified as Association materials and provided such communications comply with District policy and state and federal laws. The Association shall

hold harmless the District against any and all claims or actions brought against the District as a result of the Association's use of the District courier, email, or phone services.

The District's electronic mail system may be used by the union for union-related communications including, but not limited to, communications related to:

- a. Collective bargaining
- b. Grievance or other dispute investigations
- c. Governance of the union
- Section 10. Representation. Designated Union representatives shall suffer no loss in pay when in attendance at a meeting pursuant to instances in which representation is allowed by law or this Agreement.
- Section 11. Union Leave. Bargaining unit members may be released without pay from time to time at the District's sole discretion to attend events of importance to the Union.
- Section 12. Right to Speak at Meetings. Upon request, a Union representative shall be allowed to briefly speak at any faculty or other professional meeting.
- Section 13. Access to Worksite. At all reasonable times, the Union or its representatives shall have the right to transact Union business at each worksite during work hours and at the District's facilitates or outlying areas, without loss of compensation or benefits, provided it does not interfere with nor disrupt normal work assignments. The representative will notify the building administrator upon their arrival and departure and will comply with the buildings access procedures.
- Section 14. Availability of Collective Bargaining Agreement. The District shall maintain an accessible electronic version of the Collective Bargaining Agreement on the District website. The District will provide a hard copy of the Collective Bargaining Agreement to the employee upon request.
- Section 15. Employee Orientation. At employee orientations, the District shall provide the union with no less than thirty (30) minutes to make a presentation to all bargaining unit employees without undue interference. The union shall also be permitted to set up a table at the orientation to meet directly with employees before, after, and during breaks at the orientation. No employee shall suffer a loss in compensation or benefits as a result of participation in or attending the union's presentation.

When a bargaining unit employee is hired after the employee orientation or when the District does not conduct an orientation, the union shall be permitted to meet with newly hired bargaining unit employees for up to thirty (30) minutes during work hours without loss in compensation or benefits for the newly hired employee or for designated representatives attending the meeting. These meetings may be held on a scheduled monthly basis and held in a central location, within thirty (30) calendar days form the date of hire.

ARTICLE 5 - VACANCIES AND TRANSFERS

Section 1. Vacancies. The District shall notify the Union of all job postings in the bargaining unit. A job posting shall remain open for at least ten (10) days prior to the closing of the open position. Position openings will be communicated to the OSEA Chapter 25 President and posted on the District website.

Section 2. Filling Vacancies. An employee wishing to fill a position in the bargaining unit other than his or her current position shall apply using the established application process. When the District has determined that two (2) or more current District employees who are applicants for a vacant position are equally qualified to fill the position, and there is no external applicant who is more qualified, the internal applicant with the greatest District seniority shall be offered the position first. All employees who apply for an announced vacancy will be interviewed, provided the minimum announced qualifications for the job have been met. Employees not selected for an applied-for vacancy may request and shall be given the reason(s) in writing for the District's decision.

Section 3. Transfer.

- a. Employees may request transfer to any site within their current position. The request must be made in writing and on the appropriate District form.
- b. When an employee is denied a transfer, the reason for such denial shall be communicated to the employee in writing upon request by the employee.
- c. Notwithstanding Article 6 of this Agreement, nothing herein shall preclude the District from exercising its right to voluntarily or involuntarily transfer employees within their classifications, however, if the involuntary transfer results in a reduction of hours, the District will notify the Union and bargain the impact of the reduction.

ARTICLE 6 - LAYOFF AND RECALL

Section 1. Layoff.

- a. Definition: A layoff shall be defined as a reduction in total yearly work hours of at least ten percent (10%) during any twelve (12) month period of time.
- Order of Layoff: If the District decides to lay off employees, the order of layoff within the b. classification affected by the layoff shall be determined by inverse order of District seniority (i.e., the period of unbroken service with the District) with the least senior employee being laid off first, except that operational needs for and availability of special occupational skills may be the basis for making an exception to layoff on the basis of seniority. For purposes of this Article, classification shall mean a specific job title as found in Schedule A of this Agreement and the category as to hours worked (full-time, part-time - four (4) hours or more, or part-time - less than four (4) hours) as described in this subsection. An employee's seniority shall be based upon his/her most recent first date of service for the District. Except as otherwise provided for herein, the most senior employee in any given classification shall be the last to be laid off. In the event that two (2) or more employees in a classification in which a layoff is to occur have the same District seniority, this tie shall be broken by laying off the employee with the least seniority in the classification targeted for layoff. Should a tie still exist, it shall be broken by the drawing of lots by the OSEA Chapter 25 President or his/her designee and the Superintendent or his/her designee.

Special occupational skills are skills which are needed or required for some but not all positions within a particular classification and cannot be taught in a short period of time. Special occupational skills may include but are not limited to bilingual skills or expertise with a particular computer program. Special occupational skills may also include particular expertise, knowledge, or familiarity with a specific position and the performance of the job responsibilities related to that position. The District shall have the burden of proof in demonstrating the presence of special occupational skills.

The District shall have the right to reassign employees to different work schedules and/or hours. However, the District shall not involuntarily assign an employee to a schedule that results in a reduction of total yearly work hours of ten percent (10%) or more without observing the provisions of this Article.

- c. Notification: Before a layoff may occur, the Union and affected employees shall be provided twenty (20) working days prior written notice. The term "working days" as used above shall be as defined in Article 14, Section 3 Grievance Procedure of this Agreement.
- d. Bumping: If an employee who would otherwise be subject to layoff has, since his/her most recent date of hire, served in another classification with an equal or lower maximum rate of pay, and if the employee is able to demonstrate prior to bumping that he/she is able to perform the duties of the former classification adequately within a reasonable period of time, the District shall, based upon the criteria for layoff found in subsection (a) of this Section, consider the employee's eligibility to displace (or bump) such an employee. An employee who would otherwise be subject to layoff may also be eligible to bump if the employee has more seniority than another employee in a classification with a lower maximum rate of pay within his/her current classification family. If the employee is eligible to bump under either

scenario described above, he/she shall be notified of placement in such position in lieu of layoff in accordance with the notification procedures in subsection (b) of this Section. In no case will an employee who qualifies to displace (or bump) another employee do so if the effect is to add daily work hours to the employee's existing daily work hours schedule. In addition, in no case will the District be required to split up an existing position in order to provide a specific number of daily work hours for an employee who is eligible to displace (or bump) another employee.

The classification families for purposes above are as follows:

- Nutrition Services Specialist
 Nutrition Services Lead
 Nutrition Services Assistant I
 Nutrition Services Assistant II
- Library Assistant High School Educational Assistant & Library Assistant School Assistant
- 3. Speech Language Pathologist Assistant Special Educational Assistant
- Head Secretary
 Athletic Secretary/Bookkeeper High School
 Assistant Secretary
 Receptionist
- 5. Program Secretary
- 6. Early Childhood Education Instructor Educational Assistant (Early Childhood Education)
- Head Custodian High School, Valor/Heritage Head Custodian Lead Custodian Custodian
- 8. Parent Involvement Specialist Home School Contact
- 9. Maintenance II
 Groundskeeper/Maintenance
 Courier
- Campus Monitor
 In-School Suspension Supervisor
- 11. Career & Service Learning Specialist

- 12. Computer Network Specialist Computer/Network Technician
- 13. Student Data System Specialist
- 14. Early Childhood Education Program Specialist
- 15. Site Supervisor
- 16. Health Assistant
- 17. Home School Contact (Low Incidence Population)
- 18. Home School Contact (Migrant Specialist)
 Home School Contact (Migrant on Track)
- 19. Student Data System Specialist- Assistant

Section 2. Recall.

- a. Order of Recall: Employees who are laid off shall retain their employment status and be eligible for recall for twenty-seven (27) calendar months from the date of layoff. In the event of recall to active employment, all benefits acquired up to the time of layoff, including accrued sick leave, vacation time, and salary schedule placement, shall be reinstated. The order of recall shall be in the inverse order of layoff, except that the District may recall employees out of order or may hire new employees without resorting to the recall list when such is required to meet operational needs for and availability of special occupational skills in the specific position. The District shall be under no obligation to offer a laid-off, part-time employee a full-time position; nor shall the District be required to offer a part-time less than four (4) hours employee a part-time more than four (4) hours position.
- b. Notice of Recall: Notification of eligibility for recall shall be by certified mail sent to the address of record as maintained at the District office. It shall be the employee's responsibility to maintain current and correct address of record on file. The employee shall have seven (7) days from the date of receipt of the notice (but in no case more than ten (10) days from the date of mailing) to notify the District of his/her acceptance of the position and an additional seven (7) days, unless a later date is specified in the letter, in which to report for work.
- c. Failure to Respond to Recall Notice: Any employee who is on layoff status and who fails to accept an offered position and to report for work within the above-specified time periods, provided such offered position was at least equal in the hourly rate of compensation to the position to which the employee was assigned at the time of layoff, shall be considered to have resigned from the District and shall thereby be ineligible for recall thereafter.
- d. Recall From Lower Classification or Hours of Work: An employee who experienced a reduction in his/her hourly rate of pay and/or hours of work pursuant to the bumping provision in Section 1, subsection (c) of this Article, and any employee who is recalled to a position with a lower maximum rate of pay and/or a reduced weekly hours category, shall

continue to have the same rights of recall to the classification and/or hourly work category (see Section 1 above) he/she held at the time of layoff as apply to those employees who are not recalled (see Section 3, subsection (a) above).

ARTICLE 7 - PERSONNEL RECORDS

Section 1. The personnel records of any employee in the bargaining unit shall not have any information of a critical or disciplinary nature that does not bear that employee's signature or initials of that supervisor indicating that the employee has been shown the material and that the employee has refused to sign or initial such material. An employee shall have the right to attach a written statement of explanation to any material which the employee believes to be incorrect or derogatory. An employee's signature on such critical or disciplinary material shall not indicate the employee's agreement with the material, but only that the employee has seen the material.

Section 2. The employee's personnel or working file shall be open for inspection by the employee, the employee's designee, or a representative of the District.

An employee wishing to review the contents of their personnel file, shall make a written request to the District Human Resources Department to arrange to view their file. The review shall be scheduled within one week of the request.

An employee wishing to review the contents of their working file, shall make a written request to their building administrator to arrange to view their file. The review shall be scheduled within one week of the request.

The employee shall pay for the cost of any copying requested.

An employee may request material(s) in their personnel file to be removed from their file after three (3) years, excluding evaluations and disciplinary materials in accordance with Oregon Revised Statues. The request shall be made to the Director of Human Resources. If this request is denied, the educator may appeal to the Superintendent who shall make the final determination as to whether the material will be removed.

Section 3. Material placed in the personnel records of an employee without conformity with the provisions of this Article will not be used by the District in any subsequent evaluation or disciplinary proceeding involving the employee.

ARTICLE 8 - SEPARABILITY OF PROVISIONS

In the event that any provision of this contract shall at any time be declared invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision should apply only to a specific article, section, or portion thereof directly specified in the decision. Such a decision shall not invalidate the entire contract, it being the expressed intention of the parties hereto that all other provisions not declared invalid shall remain in full force and effect.

Any portion of this Agreement which suffers invalidation under this Article shall be subject to renegotiation upon the request of either party.

ARTICLE 9 - SALARY

Section 1. PERS. The District shall "pick up," assume, and pay a six percent (6%) average employees' contribution as required by ORS 237.071 to the Public Employees Retirement Fund or any other PERS-created alternate fund for employees participating in the Public Employee Retirement System. Such "pick up" or payment of the employee's monthly contributions to the system shall continue for the life of this Agreement and shall also be applicable to employees who first begin to participate in the system prior to the termination of this Agreement.

Section 2. Temporary Work Out of Classification. If an employee is assigned to temporarily perform the duties of a higher classification within a given pay period, the employee shall receive a ten percent (10%) increase above his/her current hourly rate. The employee shall remain at this rate of pay until the duties are no longer assigned.

Employees shall not, however, receive acting in capacity pay for any day that he/she is not actually on the job.

If an employee is appointed by the administration to fill in for a person in a lower job classification on a temporary basis, the employee will continue to receive his/her regular rate of pay.

Section 3. Overtime. All hours worked that are in excess of eight (8) in one day or forty (40) in the designated work week shall be paid at one-and-one-half (11/2) times the employee's regular rate of pay. The parties recognize that the provisions of the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) apply to all employees in the bargaining unit.

However, at the mutual agreement of the employee and the District, an alternative to the regular weekly work schedule whereby the employee is not paid overtime after forty (40) hours of work in any one week may be agreed upon subject to the following:

- a. The agreement to work such a flex schedule shall be entirely voluntary on the part of both the employee and the District.
- b. The flex time agreement shall specify the entire FLSA workweek and shall provide for the same total number of weekly hours as are normally worked.
- c. The flex time agreement shall be initialed by the authorized District supervisor and the employee and shall be attached to the employees' time sheet.

The parties recognize that overtime hours may only be worked by employees with the express approval of their supervisor and that working overtime hours without such approval may be grounds for discipline.

Section 4. Salary Schedule. All employees not placed on the maximum step of their salary range shall be given a step increase on July 1st of each year of the contract, so long as the employee had worked a total of one hundred thirty-five (135) days or more as of that date. Each employee will receive, if eligible, PERS pick-up.

Section 5. Salary Schedule Placement. At the time an employee is newly hired, the District will designate the proper placement of the employee on the appropriate wage schedule on the basis of bona fide factors, such as the employee's relevant work experience, education, training, skills and knowledge, in accordance with the Oregon Pay Equity law.

- a. A regular status employee who is hired into a higher paid range job title shall be placed on the higher pay range in accordance with the Oregon Pay Equity law.
- b. A change in position involving duties with lesser responsibilities (demotion) shall be accomplished by placing the employee on the salary schedule step that recognizes all prior continuous District service in the classification to which he/she is to be assigned plus all continuous service in any higher paid classification.

Section 6. Call Back. Employees called back to work after their regular workday because of emergency or unforeseen circumstances, such as fire, theft, vandalism, or weather conditions shall receive a minimum of one (1) hour pay.

Section 7. Show-Up Pay. An employee reporting for work on a scheduled workday, who has not been notified not to report to work, shall be provided an opportunity to work at least two (2) hours, for which he/she shall be compensated at his/her regular rate of pay. Employees who are regularly scheduled to work two (2) hours or less per day shall be provided with the opportunity to work and be compensated for the time for which they are regularly scheduled to work.

Section 8. Reclassification Upwards

- a. In the event an employee believes that the preponderance of the duties he/she is performing on a permanent basis are more properly the duties of a classification higher than the one to which he/she is assigned, the employee may submit a written request for reclassification upwards to the District. The request shall state the employee's current classification, the classification in which the employee believes he/she should be more properly placed, and a description of the kinds of higher-level duties performed and the percentage of time spent doing them.
- b. Upon receipt of a request for reclassification upwards, the District shall conduct an audit of the employee's duties and undertake any other reasonable investigation deemed necessary to determine the classification in which the employee should be most properly placed. The District shall respond to the employee's request within thirty (30) working days of the date the request was made. If, in fact, the employee is more properly classified in a higher classification because of actual duties performed, the District may:
 - 1. Immediately remove the duties that would place the employee in the higher classification and pay the employee as indicated in Section 2 of this Article from the date the request was made until the date the duties are removed; or,
 - 2. Reclassify the employee to the higher classification and pay the employee from the date the initial reclassification request was made as indicated in Section 5 of this Article.

- c. In the event the employee's request for reclassification is approved, the effective date of reclassification and any increase in salary shall be the date of the employee's initial request for reclassification which shall also constitute the employee's new anniversary date for purposes of calculating classification seniority.
- d. No classification review request may be submitted by an employee during the period of his or her probationary service with the District.
- e. The foregoing shall not be construed as preventing the District from exercising its right to transfer employees, to assign job duties, to define and redefine the job duties of any position, and upon its own initiative to reclassify positions pursuant thereto.
- f. No grievance regarding an employee's classification assignment may be filed until after the provisions of this Section have been exhausted. If a grievance regarding an employee's classification assignment is pursued to arbitration, the arbitrator shall be bound to the standards contained in this Section in making his/her determination.

Section 9. Translating/Interpreting Differential. The following employees shall receive a five percent (5%) salary differential over and above their regular salary:

- a. Any employee who is assigned translation or interpretation duties from English into a non-English language or from a non-English language into English, only for the time they are assigned and performing the duties down to fifteen (15) minute increments.
- b. Any employee who is designated by the District as a school or District level Interpreter/
 Translator and who passes a District designated oral and/or written language assessment in
 one or more designated languages. Once an employee is approved under this category, the
 5% salary differential shall apply to all work hours. However, the District shall have the
 right to discontinue the designation of any employee at any time. In this case, provisions in
 Section 9(a) above would apply to any further assigned interpreting or translating.
- c. In the event the District elects to discontinue an employee's differential pursuant to Section 9(b) above, the employee shall have the right to bump any employee lower in seniority, for purposes of retaining the differential only, who is receiving the differential for the same language at the same work site.

Section 10. Longevity Pay. Employees who have been employed by the District for at least ten (10) years without a break in service and who are at the top step of the salary schedule shall receive the following longevity pay:

- a. Years eleven (11) through fifteen (15): Two and one-half percent (2.5 %) above the top step of the employee's salary schedule.
- b. Years sixteen (16) through twenty (20): Three and one-half percent (3.5 %) above the top step of the employee's salary schedule.
- c. Years twenty-one (21) through twenty-five (25): Four and one-half percent (4.5 %) above the top step of the employee's salary schedule.

d. More than twenty-five years: Six percent (6 %) above the top step of the employee's salary schedule.

Employees who achieve their respective longevity years between July 1st and December 31st will begin receiving pay for their longevity level on their January paycheck. Employees who achieve the respective longevity years between January 1st and June 30th will begin receiving pay for their longevity level on their first paycheck of the following school year.

Section 11. General Salary Increase

a. Effective July 1, 2022, there shall be an across-the-board salary increase of four percent (4%). Effective July 1, 2023, there shall be an across-the-board salary increase of three-point seven five percent (3.75%). Effective July 1, 2024 there shall be an across-the-board salary increase of three-point seven five percent (3.75%). These increases are reflected in Appendix A, B and C of this Agreement.

Paid Family and Medical Leave

- a. Effective January 1, 2023, the District will cover the total employee contribution to Oregon's Paid Family Leave insurance program for all member of the Bargaining Unit, up to a total amount not to exceed three-fifths of one percent (0.06%) of Bargaining Unit wages.
- b. Should any changes to Oregon's Paid Family and Medical Leave insurance law delay its implementation past January 1, 2023, the District will begin such contributions on the new effective date.
- c. Should any change to the law increase the total contributions required by the District (including District and employee contributions) beyond the (1%) of Bargaining Unit wages, the parties agree to bargain over whether the District will cover the additional cost of the required employee contribution.

Section 12. Differentials

- a. All Nutrition Services Assistants I and II and all Nutrition Services Managers who provide the District with documentation of certification by the School Nutrition Association (SNA) shall receive a \$.35 per hour differential over and above their regular hourly salary.
- b. All Educational Assistants and Special Educational Assistants who possess a BA degree and who are actively enrolled in a teacher licensure program or who hold a current Oregon teaching license, shall receive a five percent (5%) differential over and above their regular hourly salary.
- c. All classified employees who are directed and identified by the Student Services Department to insert catheters or help with g-tube feedings on a regular basis shall receive a five percent (5%) differential over and above their regular hourly salary.

Section 13. Extra Duty

a. Employees who perform duties in positions designated by the District for Extra Duty Compensation shall be paid an hourly wage equal to the state minimum wage in effect at the

time of performance.

- b. Any hours worked in the performance of such an extra duty position that are in excess of forty (40) total work hours in the week (extra duty hours and regular position hours combined) shall be counted as overtime and paid at one and one-half times the hourly rate set forth in Section 13(a) above.
- c. Should the total hourly compensation received by the employee at the end of the extra duty assignment be less than the District's scheduled extra duty stipend for the position, the District will pay the employee the difference.
- d. The District will establish a limit on the total number of hours an employee may work in a given extra duty position so that the total hourly compensation earned by the employee does not exceed the District's scheduled extra duty stipend for the position. An employee may not exceed the established maximum hours without advance approval of the District.
- e. Hours worked in an Extra Duty assignment shall not be counted toward an employee's proration for insurance purposes.

Section 14. Specialty Class Instructor

- a. Employees who are hired to fill Specialty Class Instructor positions shall be paid at a rate of fifteen dollars (\$15) per hour. Hours worked as a Specialty Class Instructor shall not be counted toward a bargaining unit member's total weekly hours for overtime purposes.
- b. The District will only hire non-bargaining unit employees to fill Specialty Class Instructor positions, if no bargaining unit employee applies or is deemed qualified to fill the position. Anyone hired under this provision will not be covered by this Agreement.

Section 15. Sports/Activities Supervision

- a. Bargaining unit members who are hired to perform sports/activities supervision duties shall be paid at the rate of \$15 per hour.
 - Bargaining unit members who are hired to perform event manager duties shall be paid at the rate of \$25.00 per hour.
- b. Hours worked performing sports/activities supervision shall not be counted toward a bargaining unit member's total weekly hours for overtime purposes.

Section 16. Rehiring Following Retirement

In the event the District offers post-retirement employment, it is agreed that the work shall be considered bargaining unit work and that the employee shall be subject to all terms and conditions of the collective bargaining agreement except as follows:

a. The District may designate the duration of a retiree's post-retirement employment with the District. At the conclusion of that duration, the employee shall have no right to continued

- employment with the District and may not challenge the District's decision not to extend employment further.
- b. Employees shall maintain their same placement on the salary schedule as when they retired.
- c. The District will continue to make insurance contributions as defined in Article 13.
- d. Articles 6, 11 and 12 shall not apply to employees rehired after retirement.
- e. All leave allocations shall terminate at the time of retirement and shall no longer be available for use.
- f. Employees will accrue one day of sick leave per month and this time may be used as defined in the collective bargaining agreement. Sick leave will be awarded at the beginning of each month.

ARTICLE 10 - PROBATIONARY PERIOD

Section 1. New Employees. All new employees are on new-employee probationary status until the first of the month following one hundred fifty (150) working days. "Working days," as used herein, shall be those days that the employee is in a paid status. At any time prior to completion of the probationary period, the District may terminate the employee for any reason it deems to be sufficient and such action shall not be subject to the grievance procedure contained in Article 14 of this Agreement.

Section 2. Employees Hired into New Positions. All employees who apply for and are hired into new positions are in transitional probationary status until the first of the month following one hundred fifty (150) working days as above defined in the new position. While on transitional probationary status, an employee may be returned to his or her previous position at the sole discretion of the District. The employee shall also have the right to return to his/her prior position during the transitional probationary period if he/she chooses to do so. Such an employee shall not, however, be subject to discharge or other disciplinary action without the rights and protections afforded by Article 15 - Discipline of this Agreement. Any new employee, as referenced in Section 1 of this Article, who is hired into a new position prior to completing his/her initial probationary period shall, in addition to his/her transitional probationary status, be subject to Section 1 of this Article until completing his/her initial one hundred fifty (150) working days with the District.

ARTICLE 11 - PAID LEAVE

Section 1. Holidays. Holidays for employees in the bargaining unit shall be as follows:

Employee Work Days	Employee Work Days
<u>0-249</u>	<u>250-260</u>
0-249 Labor Day Veterans Day Thanksgiving Day Christmas Day New Year's Day Presidents Day Memorial Day	Labor Day Veterans Day Thanksgiving Day Day after Thanksgiving Christmas Eve Christmas Day New Year's Eve New Year's Day Martin Luther King, Jr. Day Presidents Day Memorial Day
	Independence Day
	Juneteenth

June 19th, hereinafter referred to as "Juneteenth," shall be recognized on June 19th. If this day falls on a Saturday it shall be observed on the preceding Friday, if it falls on a Sunday it shall be observed on the succeeding Monday. For employees whose work calendar is between 0-249 days, Juneteenth shall be a non-contract day.

Employees in the bargaining unit shall be compensated for the holiday as though that employee had worked a regular schedule for the day. To be eligible for holiday pay, an employee must be in a paid status on the last regularly scheduled work day before and the first regularly scheduled work day after the holiday.

If an employee is required to work on the holiday, he/she shall in addition to the above specified holiday pay receive pay at one and one-half times his/her regular hourly rate for the hours worked.

Section 2. Vacation. Only employees whose scheduled work year, including paid holidays, is two hundred forty (240) days or more shall be eligible for vacation. Except for employees hired prior to July 1, 1983, eligibility for vacation shall be determined on a year-by-year basis. Vacation time earned by employees shall be as follows:

Upon completion of the new employee probationary period, each employee whose primary position is for 240 days or more shall be credited with five (5) days of accrued vacation time. Monthly accrual of vacation after completion of such probationary period shall be as follows:

Monthly

Annual

	Monung	/ Milituai
	Credit	<u>Equivalent</u>
Through 5 years of service:	.83 day	10 days
After 6 th anniversary:	.92 day	11 days
After 7 th anniversary:	1 day	12 days
After 8th anniversary:	1.08 days	13 days

After 9th anniversary:	1.17 days	14 days
After 10 th anniversary:	1.25 days	15 days
After 16 th anniversary:	1.33 days	16 days
After 17 th anniversary:	1.42 days	17 days
After 18 th anniversary:	1.5 days	18 days
After 19 th anniversary:	1.58 days	19 days
After 20 th anniversary:	1.67 days	20 days
After 25 th anniversary:	2.08 days	25 days

No monthly vacation credit shall be given to any employee who has more than two (2) times the annual accrual credited to his/her account.

Vacation of more than one (1) week in duration shall be requested at least four (4) weeks in advance and shall be on a first-request-received-has-priority basis. Approval of vacation time off shall be subject to the operational needs of the District.

Section 3. Sick Leave. All employees shall receive one (1) day of sick leave credit for each month worked. Any month in which the employee is paid for more than ten (10) days of work, including paid leave time, shall qualify as a month worked. Employees will be credited with the total amount of their annual sick leave at the beginning of each employee's work year. An employee who leaves employment with the District and has used more sick leave than was earned at the time of separation shall have the value of the unearned but used sick leave withheld from his or her final paycheck.

Use of sick leave shall be governed in accordance with Oregon Law. (OFLA, Oregon Sick Leave Law, and Oregon Sick Time Law.)

Section 4. Personal/Emergency Leave. Employees shall be granted three (3) days of absence per year for personal, legal, business, household, family matters, or emergencies which require absence during school hours. Such leave may be used in half-day increments with supervisor approval. Personal leave shall not be used to perform duties for another employer.

Except in emergencies, personal leave must be applied for to the employee's immediate supervisor at least five (5) days before taking such leave. Said notice shall not state the reason for taking such leave other than it is being taken under this Section. Such leave shall not be taken on the day preceding or following a vacation or break period without permission of the Superintendent/designee.

A vacation/break period shall be defined as any weekday non-contract/non-instructional day for all employees. (i.e. beginning of school year, holidays, conference, winter break, spring break, end of school year, etc.)

Personal leave shall not accumulate from one fiscal year to the next. However, any employee who works the full school year and has not used all or a portion of the three (3) days shall be paid at the Step 1 rate of his/her classification at the end of the school year for that portion of the three (3) days which were not used. Any employee who begins employment after the start of their scheduled work year or is terminated before the end of their scheduled work year shall receive a prorated personal leave credit based upon the portion of the scheduled work year which was actually worked. If at the point of termination of employment, the employee has used more personal leave

than the amount to which they were entitled, the excess amount used shall be deducted from the employee's final pay.

Section 5. Bereavement Leave

- a. Up to three (3) paid days total for the death of each member of the employee's immediate family. "Immediate family" shall be interpreted as spouse, domestic partner, mother, father, daughter, son, brother, sister, father-in-law, mother-in-law, daughter-in-law, son-in-law sister-in-law, brother-in-law, uncle, aunt, nephew, niece, grandfather, grandmother, grandchild and stepmother, stepfather, stepchildren, stepbrother, and stepsister. At the request of the employee and at the discretion of the Superintendent/designee, extra paid days leave may be granted. If requested employees will be granted up to one (1) day unpaid leave for the death of friends or relatives outside the immediate family.
- b. Bereavement leave must normally be used within two (2) weeks of the death of a family member listed above. In circumstances where the settling of an estate requires activities outside the two (2) week limit an employee may use bereavement leave up to a month after the death by scheduling such time in advance.
- c. Employees dealing with bereavement issues outside of the aforementioned two (2) week period, may use personal leave, sick leave (with a health care professional's certification of need), or unpaid leave (at the discretion of the District).
- d. Additional leave for bereavement purposes outside the scope of subsections (a), (b), or (c) of this Section shall be at the Superintendent's (or his/her designee's) discretion, or as otherwise required by law.

Section 6. Jury Duty and Court Appearance. Any classified employee, regardless of his/her place of residence, who serves on jury duty or as a witness under subpoena, shall suffer no loss of pay while on jury duty or service as a witness, provided: (a) All fees received by the employee for jury duty or witness fees are forwarded to the District business office; however, the employee may retain mileage fees, and (b) the employee is not a party in interest to the proceeding or appearing in response to a subpoena obtained by or at the request of the Union. Each employee shall promptly notify his or her supervisor and provide a copy of the summons upon notice of jury duty or upon receipt of a subpoena. If an employee's jury duty or court appearance ends on a given day at a time prior to the end of his or her regular shift, the employee shall return to work for the remainder of his or her shift unless less than one (1) hour remains in the shift.

Section 7. Injury on Duty. In the event a classified employee is absent from his/her duties due to an accident covered by the District's workers' compensation carrier, the employee shall have the following options:

- a. The employee may receive funds due him/her under the District's workers' compensation carrier and be granted an unpaid leave of absence without any charge being made against employee's sick time leave.
- b. The employee may make claim for use of any available sick leave time, but the same shall be reduced by the sums paid employee by the District's workers' compensation carrier. If an employee selects this option, the District shall pay the difference between the amount received from the workers' compensation carrier and the employee's regular amount of pay. This difference will then be charged against the employee's available sick leave by translating dollars into hours of sick leave at the employee's regular rate of pay. This option shall not be available when an employee has exhausted all available sick leave.

c. If the District elects to return an employee to work in a light duty position with restrictions from full and regular duties, the District and Union shall review and discuss any District proposal to implement a reduced rate for the employee to reflect the fact that not all duties of the position are being performed. This provision shall not obligate the District to create a light duty position.

Section 8. Religious Leave. The District recognizes that adherents of certain *bona fide* religions may have requirements due to the faith's designation of certain "holy days" during which adherents are prohibited from performing work and/or are required to attend religious services. As an expression of its commitment to diversity, tolerance, and religious freedom, the District shall permit adherents of such religions to utilize paid vacation, personal/emergency leave, accrued compensatory time, or unpaid leave at the employee's discretion in order to observe required "holy days." Employees may not utilize unpaid leave until all vacation, personal/emergency leave or compensatory time has been used.

In addition, and with the approval of the District, such employees may also be permitted to "flex" such time so that their lost hours will be made up without loss of pay to them. Hours which are flexed under this Section shall not be eligible for overtime or compensatory time compensation.

Employees who wish to have the value of their anticipated unpaid leave for religious purposes spread among the remaining paychecks for the year shall submit to the Human Resources Department a proposed calendar of vacation, personal and unpaid leave to be taken during the year no later than September 10th. Reductions to pay resulting from those leave days categorized as unpaid in accordance with this section shall then be spread evenly among the employee's remaining paychecks.

Section 9 – Sick Leave Bank (SLB)

1. SLB Committee

- a. The committee shall be composed of three (3) Association members.
- b. The committee shall award or deny any Association member's request for leave from the bank. The decision of the committee shall not be subject to the grievance process.

2. Donation to SLB

- a. To become enrolled, and stay enrolled, in the SLB, prior to November 1, association members will have the option to donate a minimum of one full day, in half or full day increments, up to a maximum of three full days within one school year.
- b. Association member may donate additional sick leave days, up to the maximum, at their discretion.
- c. SLB will maintain a minimum balance of 20 days. If requested leave would require SLB to fall below the minimum balance:
 - i. The committee would determine whether additional hours donations are necessary.
 - ii. Members will not be required to re-donate more than one (1) time per calendar year.
- d. Any time remaining in the SLB on June 30 will automatically roll to the next year to begin the SLB balance. The SLB Committee will review the balance at the

beginning of the year to determine whether there needs to be a sick leave contribution for the new year by current SLB members.

3. Withdrawal from SLB

- a. SLB can only be used if Association member has exhausted all available types of District paid leave.
- b. Members must request leave in half or full day increments, up to a maximum of twenty (20) days.
- c. If a member is terminated or leaves the district during or after a contract year, donated hours will not be returned to the member.
- d. Only members enrolled in SLB may access leave from the bank.

4. Qualifications to apply for SLB

- a. Association member has provided proof of a personal or immediate family (spouse or child) member's serious physical health care condition form a medical provider.
- b. Association member must have been employed for minimum of 90 days.
- c. Association members employed on a temporary contract, hired before October 1 and with a contract length of at least 135 days shall be eligible.
- d. Association member initiates a contact with the Committee.
- e. Association member completes and returns the application.
- f. Application is reviewed by the Committee.
- g. Association member will receive written notification of the Committee's decision within ten (10) working days of receipt of application.
- h. Upon approval, the Business Office will make appropriate adjustments to the Association member's leave and time sheet records.

ARTICLE 12 - LEAVE WITHOUT PAY

Section 1. Long-term Leave. An employee may be allowed leave without pay upon request and with the approval of the Superintendent/designee. Terms and conditions of the leave shall be reduced to writing, signed by both parties, and placed in the personnel file for future reference. The maximum period of time for which an unpaid leave may be granted shall be one (1) year. While on excused absence, employees shall have the option of remaining an active participant in employee insurance plans where permitted by the insurance company by contributing the amount of premium for such insurance.

An employee on leave without pay shall, at the end of such leave, be returned to a position that is equivalent to the employee's position in the District prior to the leave. If an employee's leave under this paragraph is for more than one-half (½) of the work year, the employee shall be placed on the same step upon return to work. Increase in compensation that went into effect during the time the employee was on leave without pay shall be applied to the employee's compensation upon returning from leave.

Failure to return to work on the agreed-upon date shall result in the employee's forfeit of position. The position shall be declared vacant and open to employment.

Section 2. Childcare Leave. Notwithstanding the leave provided by law, an employee who has completed his/her probationary period may request and shall be granted leave for a period of up to ninety (90) days or, if greater, leave until the beginning of the next school year, in order to care for a newborn or newly adopted child who is under the age of five (5) years.

Section 3. Continuing Education. The District shall, contingent upon operational needs, allow the use of accrued vacation, unpaid leave, compensatory time, and/or personal leave days for the purpose of pursuing education that is related to the employee's current position in the District or another District position that the employee in interested in attaining.

ARTICLE 13 – INSURANCE

Section 1. Full-Time Employees

- a. Effective September 1, 2022, for coverage commencing October 1, 2022, the District agrees to provide insurance for the year (12 months) and to contribute up to one thousand four hundred and seventy-eight dollars (\$1478) per month toward the purchase of a mutually agreed-upon health, dental and vision insurance plan for each eligible full-time employee in the bargaining unit. Any balance remaining can be applied to the cost of family insurance coverage for health, dental, vision, or group life insurance.
- b. For the 2023-24 school year and the 2024-25 school year negotiations will be reopened for health care only, in May of 2023 for both the 23-24 and 24-25 school years.
- c. The District agrees to establish Health Saving Accounts on behalf of those employees who wish to pick the qualifying health care plan (s). Qualifying plans will be mutually agreed upon by the District and the OSEA. Any amounts credited to members, in accordance with the stated maximum District contribution, not needed to pay the actual cost of monthly insurance premium on behalf of the employee will be deposited to the employee's HSA account, subject to all legal requirements.
- d. An insurance pool is established using any amounts credited to members, in accordance with the stated maximum District contribution, not needed to pay the actual cost of monthly insurance premiums. For example, if the District insurance cap is \$982, and an employee's total actual cost for insurance premiums is \$882 per month, then \$100 per month will be credited to the insurance pool. This section will not apply if the employee has chosen the High Deductible Plan H and is participating in the Health Savings Account.

The pooling payment formula will be established each year during the month of September after the enrollment period by determining the difference remaining, if any, between the total amount that would be expended if each employee used his or her maximum cap allotment and the actual cost of insurance premiums attributed to each employee. The resulting amount contained in the pool will then be distributed by dividing that amount by the number of members whose actual premium amounts exceed the District cap. Each member over the cap will then be credited with an equal amount to go toward monthly insurance premiums.

No member will receive a total amount (District cap plus pool contribution) that exceeds their total insurance premium cost. Part-time members will receive a pro-rated amount equivalent to their percentage of the District cap.

If an employee's actual premium cost exceeds the District maximum contribution, along with the appropriate pool contribution, the remainder will be paid by the employee through a payroll deduction.

If changes in insurance coverage are made by employees following the enrollment period, and the result is an expenditure by the District in excess of the total pool amount, that expenditure shall be reimbursed to the District by withholding it from the next year's pool amount prior to the disbursement being calculated.

e. Any eligible employee who works the regularly scheduled school year, shall receive insurance benefits for a full calendar year commencing on October 1st, and terminating on the following September 30th.

Any employee who commences employment or returns from a nonpaid leave after the beginning of the regularly scheduled school year shall receive insurance benefits beginning upon the first of the month following the month in which employment commenced. However, if the employee has been offered and has accepted a position with the District for the following school year, insurance benefit coverage shall be continued through September 30th.

If an employee is separated prior to the end of a school year, the District's payment of premiums for the employee's coverage shall cease as of the last day of the month he/she is employed.

Section 2. Part-time Employees

If part-time employees are eligible to be covered by the insurer, the District's maximum monthly per-employee contribution to such insurance under this Agreement shall be as follows:

- a. Employees who are regularly scheduled to work at least thirty-seven and one-half (37 ½) hours but less than forty (40) hours shall receive the same insurance contribution as described in Section 1 of this Article.
- b. Employees who are regularly scheduled to work at least thirty-five (35) hours per week but less than thirty-seven and one-half (371/2) hours per week 92% of full-time cap.
- c. Employees who are regularly scheduled to work at least thirty (30) hours per week but less than thirty-five (35) hours 88% of full-time cap.
- d. Employees who are regularly scheduled to work at least twenty-five (25) hours per week but less than thirty (30) hours 59% of full-time cap.
- e. Employees who are regularly scheduled to work at least twenty (20) hours per week but less than twenty-five (25) hours 50% of full-time cap.

Contributions to the insurance coverage of part-time employees is only applicable if those employees are, in fact, eligible for such coverage under the Union's group plan with its contracting insurer.

Section 3. Leave Due to Time Loss Injury. If an employee is absent from work because of a job-related injury and his or her accumulated sick leave has been exhausted, the employee shall have the option of remaining an active participant in employee insurance plans where permitted by the insurance company by contributing the total amount of premium for such insurance.

Section 4. Insurance Committee. The District and the Union agree to jointly participate in an insurance committee for the purpose of examining ways in which insurance costs can be controlled for both parties. The specific guidelines and procedures of the committee will be

mutually agreed upon by the District and the Union, but in no case will the committee have the authority to alter, modify, or amend this Agreement.

Section 5. Oregon Educators Benefit Board (OEBB)

- a. The parties agree that neither the Union nor the District will have the option of selecting any health insurance coverage other than those options provided by the OEBB, except as provided by law.
- b. The District's insurance contribution set forth in Section 1 shall be used to pay for health insurance coverage and any administrative fees associated with this coverage.
- c. The District contribution described in Sections 1 and 2 may be used by bargaining unit members to purchase only the following, regardless of the plans or options provided for by the OEBB; however, nothing herein is intended to bar bargaining unit members from purchasing other plans or options at their own costs: 1. Primary medical coverage; 2. Primary dental coverage; 3. Primary vision coverage; 4. Life insurance in the amount currently provided to bargaining unit members; 5. Short-term disability, with benefits no greater than that provided to bargaining unit members when this Agreement is ratified.
 - No employer contributions may be used towards coverage other than those listed above, and no funds will be paid back to employees as cash.
- d. Should the full-family rate under the OEBB, including all items in Section 6(c) of this Article, be less than the stated District maximum cap, the District's cap shall become that actual full-family rate. However, the District will revert to the agreed-upon contribution at any time the actual full-family rate exceeds the agreed-upon contribution.
- e. The District and Union agree that, to the extent permissible by law, the in-District pool set forth in this article shall continue in effect following the unit's entry into OEBB. No District insurance contributions shall be considered "unused" for purposes of the law until such contributions have been distributed pursuant to Section 1(d).

ARTICLE 14 - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

Section 1. Definitions.

- a. Grievance: A grievance is a claim by an employee or the Union based upon the interpretation, application, or violation of this Agreement.
- b. Grievant: A grievant is the person, persons, or the Union making the claim.
- c. Party in interest: The party in interest is either the person or persons making the claim or the persons against whom the claim is made.

Section 2. Purpose. The purpose of this procedure is to secure at the lowest possible level, equitable solutions to the problems which may from time to time arise affecting employees. Both parties agree that these proceedings will be kept as informal and confidential as may be appropriate at any level of the procedure. The District and the Union agree that all employees shall have the unqualified right to file grievances and neither the Union nor the District may take any action against any employee as a result of the employee's exercise of that right.

Section 3. Procedure

- a. Time Limits: These procedures should be processed as rapidly as possible, the number of days indicated for settlement or appeal at each level should be considered a maximum. The time limits can be extended only by written mutual consent of the parties involved at any level of the procedure. Days shall mean those days (normally Monday through Friday and excluding legal holidays) when the District office is open for business. Regardless of the day it is received, a grievance filing or response will be considered timely if postmarked one or more days prior to the last day allowed for its filing or response.
- b. Representation: Any grievant may be represented in all stages of the grievance procedure by himself/herself or by the Union. When an employee is not represented by the Union, the Union shall have the right to be present to state its views at all stages of the grievance procedure.
- c. Financial Responsibility: Each party shall pay any and all costs incurred by said party. Arbitration costs shall be borne equally by both parties.
- d. Resolution of Grievances: A grievance shall be considered resolved if: (a) the grievant(s) receives a satisfactory resolution to the grievance, or (b) the grievant(s) chooses to withdraw the grievance in writing, or (c) the grievant(s) fails to appeal the grievance to the next level within the number of days allotted at that level. The parties may mutually agree in writing to the initial filing of a grievance at Level Two or Three.
- e. Written Decision: Decisions rendered at Level One which are unsatisfactory to the grievant(s) and all decisions rendered at Levels Two and Three of the grievance procedure shall be in writing, setting forth the decision and the reasons therefore and shall be transmitted promptly to all parties in interest and to the Union.
- f. Statutory Appeal: Nothing in this article shall be construed as interfering with an employee's statutory right to appeal a dismissal or demotion to the Board in accordance with ORS 332.544.

Section 4. Levels of Grievance. The parties may mutually agree to file a grievance at any Level of the grievance procedure in the event the Level One respondent does not have the authority to remedy or adjust the grievance.

Level One:

An employee with a grievance shall present the grievance to his/her immediate supervisor in writing on the established grievance form (Appendix D) within ten (10) days after the grievance becomes known to the aggrieved party. At that time, the grievant shall explain the nature of the grievance, the article(s) allegedly violated, against whom it is leveled, and what the grievant would consider an equitable solution to the grievance. From the date of the grievant's initial presentation of grievance, the immediate supervisor shall have five (5) days to respond to the grievance.

Level Two:

If the grievant is not satisfied with the disposition of the grievance at Level One, or if no decision has been rendered within five (5) days after the presentation of the grievance at Level One, the grievant may file the grievance with the Superintendent/designee within five (5) days after the decision at Level One was received or within ten (10) days after the grievance was presented at Level One, whichever is sooner.

Level Three - Arbitration:

- a. If the Union is not satisfied with the disposition of the grievance at the prior step, it shall have the right to submit the grievance to binding arbitration by forwarding notice of intent to arbitrate the grievance to the Superintendent's/designee's office not less than five (5) days after receipt of the decision at the prior step.
- b. Within ten (10) days after such written notice of submission to arbitration, the District and the Union shall attempt to agree upon a mutually acceptable arbitrator and shall, thereafter, obtain a commitment from said arbitrator to serve. If the parties are unable to agree upon an arbitrator within the specified period or to subsequently obtain a commitment to serve from the selected arbitrator, a request for a list of seven (7) arbitrators may be made to the Employment Relations Board by either party. Upon receipt of the list of arbitrators, the Union and the District shall select an arbitrator by alternately striking names from the list. The party to strike the first name shall be determined by lot.
- c. The arbitrator so selected shall confer with the representative of the Board and the Union and hold hearings promptly and shall be requested to issue his/her decision not later than twenty (20) days from the date of the close of the hearings, or, if oral hearings have been waived, then from the date written closing briefs are submitted to him/her. The arbitrator's decision shall be in writing and shall set forth his/her findings of fact, reasoning, and conclusions on the issue submitted. The arbitrator shall be without power or authority to make any decision which requires the commission of an act prohibited by law or which violates the terms of this Agreement. The arbitrator shall further be without power to add to, delete from, or otherwise modify the terms of this Agreement. The decision of the arbitrator shall be submitted to the Board and the Union and shall be final and binding on the parties.

ARTICLE 15 - DISCIPLINE

Section 1. Just Cause. Except as provided for in Article 10 - Probationary Period, no employee shall be subject to written reprimand, suspension without pay, reduction in salary, disciplinary demotion, or termination without just cause. Any appeal of a written reprimand shall be limited to Level Two of the contractual grievance procedure.

Section 2. Representation. The employee shall have the right to have a Union representative present during any investigatory meeting that might reasonably be expected to result in disciplinary action up to and including termination of employment. When a representative is present, their role shall be limited to the following:

- a. The representative may inquire, at the outset of the interview, regarding its purpose, including inquiring about the general subject matter, of the questioning to follow;
- b. During the questioning of the employee by the employer, the representative may participate only to the extent of seeking clarification of questions;
- c. After the employer has completed the questioning of the employee, the representative may ask the employee questions designed to clarify previous answers or to elicit further relevant information;
- d. Before the end of the meeting, the representative may suggest to the employer other witnesses to interview and may describe relevant practices, prior situations, or mitigating factors that could have some bearing on the employer's deliberations concerning discipline.

Section 3. Complaint Procedure. Any verbal and/or written formal complaint regarding an employee made to any member of the Administration by any parent, student, or other person that may influence their evaluation or result in discipline of that employee, shall be processed according to the following procedure.

- a. Every attempt will be made to notify the Union when an employee against employee complaint is filed.
- b. The building administrator or Superintendent's designee shall meet with the employee to apprise the employee of the nature of the complaint (name of the complainant, date of the complaint, and any written documentation within seven (7) working days.
- c. The employee shall have the right to have Union representation in attendance at any meetings or conferences regarding the complaint. If Union representation is not available, the meeting will be postponed until such representation can be arranged.
- d. If the facts of the complaint are in dispute and the matter is not resolved, the employee shall be notified that an investigation by the Superintendent or their designee shall be conducted.
- e. Upon completion of the investigation, the employee shall be notified of the disposition of the complaint.
- f. If the complaint results in disciplinary action, then the employee shall have all rights and provisions as provided under Article 15, Section 1 Just Cause, including the right to attach any statements or documents they believe to be relevant.
- g. The provisions of this Article shall not apply in situations in which the subject matter of the complaint is also the subject of an investigation by law enforcement or an outside agency.

ARTICLE 16 - WORK HOURS AND OTHER WORKING CONDITIONS

Section 1. Work Week. In accordance with applicable law, the District shall maintain a consistent beginning and end time and day of the workweek for the purposes of computing overtime.

Section 2. Lunch and Rest Periods. Employees shall receive a 15-minute break as close to the middle as conveniently possible of each continuous work period lasting the greater part of four (4) hours. Such breaks shall be scheduled by the employee's immediate supervisor.

A non-paid meal period of no less than thirty (30) minutes in duration or greater than one (1) hour in duration shall be allowed for all employees who work more than five (5) hours per day. The District may, at its discretion, also schedule a non-paid meal period for employees who work more than three (3) hours per day.

Section 3. Physical Examination. Physical examination required as a condition of employment will be performed by physicians designated by the Board and the cost thereof shall be paid by the District.

Section 4. School Closure and Delayed Start of School. When school is temporarily closed by decision of the Superintendent or designee due to inclement weather, natural disaster, or other emergency, the district shall inform those employees who are to report to work and at what time.

Tier 1: Student Contact Day-School is Cancelled

Staff to Report:

Building Level

- Administration
- Head Custodians
- Site Communication Designee (The site designee who reports might not stay for the entire day. Upon completing their assigned tasks, they will be relieved of their duty and sent home by a supervisor.)

District Level

- Admin/Directors/Supervisors
- Executive Secretary to the School Board and Superintendent
- Maintenance Program Secretary
- Maintenance Staff as identified by Supervisor
- Support Staff as notified by Supervisor

District Closure During Student Non-Contact Day

All staff assigned to work during a student non-contact day are to report unless notified otherwise by their supervisor.

When school is closed for the above reasons, there will be no reduction to the employees pay for that time lost. The Board may require the time lost to be made up by the employee with no additional pay. However, employees who were directed to report shall be paid for any additional time worked. The District will determine how the lost time is made up, as long as the make-up time is not in excess of the actual time of the closure.

Tier 2: Late Start

All staff will report on time, if it is safe to do. If staff are unable to safely report to work, they will notify their supervisor as soon as possible. Employees who are unable to report to work may use personal leave or vacation leave if it is available, or unpaid leave.

The District shall insure that employees have the opportunity to make up such lost time not later than June 30 of each year. Should the District fail to provide adequate time for employees to make up lost time, the employee shall suffer no lose in pay. Should an employee fail to make up lost time, the days/hours not worked shall be paid to the District in the following order: 1) charged against any accumulated but unused compensatory time; 2) charged against any accumulated vacation time; 3) unused personal leave time. If the above accounts do not cover the amount of the lost time the remaining amount shall be deducted from the employee's pay at the end of the school year, the amount calculated by multiplying the number of hours of lost time not made up times their hourly rate of pay.

If an employee who has not made up the lost time is terminated from employment (retires, resigns, or is discharged) prior to the end of the school year, the amount of the lost time, calculated as above, shall be deducted from their final pay.

Twelve-month employees who work forty hours a week do not typically have the opportunity to make up the lost time when school is closed. In the event the District requires make up days for all employees, twelve-month employees can either take paid leave (vacation, personal leave), or unpaid leave, in lieu of making up the lost time. The provisions of this section shall not be construed as to interfere with the right of the District to lay off employees pursuant to Article 6 - Layoff and Recall of this Agreement.

Section 5. Mileage. Employees who are authorized to use their personal automobiles in their employment with the District shall receive mileage reimbursement at the established IRS rate.

Section 6. Job Titles and Descriptions. The District shall provide the Union, upon request, with copies of all job descriptions within the bargaining unit and shall notify the Union whenever any such descriptions are changed.

Section 7. Trainings and Travel Time. When employees attend District required classes, workshops, trainings, or conferences related to the employee's job duties, whether in-district or out of district, the employee shall be paid at their normal rate of pay, unless overtime is required by law.

Section 8. Overnight Travel. If employees travel to a required overnight training on a weekend or holiday they will be compensated for the travel time that occurs during their normal work hours.

ARTICLE 17 - PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

The District shall set aside a minimum of ten thousand dollars (\$10,000) to encourage self-improvement of classified employees. The funds may be used for workshops, seminars, conferences, classes and/or tests.

The monies shall be distributed on a first come, first serve basis.

- 1. In accordance with District designated procedures, all members shall be eligible to receive reimbursement for workshops, seminars, conferences, classes and/or tests with passing results.
- 2. These requests will be reviewed and acted upon in accordance with District-designated procedures by a committee of Association members appointed by the Association. The Association shall keep the District informed at all times of the current Chairperson of the committee. For approved college classes, the District will reimburse up to the current Portland State University graduate rate per quarter hour, not to exceed five hundred dollars (\$500) per term. Not to exceed two terms (\$1000).
- 3. The District shall pay the full cost for those workshops seminars, conferences, tests, professional development opportunities, or classes in which the member is required to participate.
- 4. For any and all reimbursement, the member must provide proof of payment of tuition and/or assessment cost and proof of successful completion. Members who take classes during the summer shall not be eligible for reimbursement until after classes/seminars/trainings have commenced for the following school year. Proof of payment and proof of successful completion for summer courses must be submitted to Human Resources Office no later than October 31.
- 5. The District's maximum expenditure for tuition reimbursement shall be limited to ten thousand (\$10,000) in any one contract year. The District and Association shall collaborate on procedures and rules governing the disbursement of funds under this section.
- 6. All leave requests, as a result of attending above activities, shall follows District approved leave process.

ARTICLE 18 – SAFETY

- a. Employees shall not be required to work under unsafe or hazardous conditions or to perform tasks, which endanger their health, safety or well-being. A complaint claiming a violation of this section, should first be addressed to the District Safety committee. If the employee is not satisfied with the result, the complaint will be filed in accordance with the grievance procedure.
- b. Employees shall report all injuries while preforming their duties in accordance with the district's established reporting procedures. A classified representative will participate in the safety committee meetings.
- c. In accordance with Oregon OSHA rules, the district shall maintain records of staff injuries and work-related illnesses and report them to OSHA.
- d. If the District is notified by the Oregon Health Authority (OHA) or local county health organization of a communicable disease outbreak, the serious health condition or event, the district will communicate that information to the employees, unless confidentiality laws prevent it from doing so.
- e. To ensure the health and safety of students and employees, the district will follow all guidelines from the OHA, Center for Disease Control (CDC), and/or the local health authority, and agrees to bargain the impact of any changes, as required by Oregon law.
- f. Employees who have documented health issues may request an ADA interactive hearing and they will provide medical documentation to the district before the hearing. The district will schedule an ADA interactive hearing and will discuss reasonable accommodations that may be provided. The employee may request a Union representative for this hearing.

ARTICLE 19 - ELECTRONIC SURVEILLANCE

- a. The primary purpose of electronic surveillance is to ensure the health, welfare, and safety of all employees, students, and visitors to District property and to safeguard District facilities and equipment. As such, the District and the Union agree:
- b. Such equipment shall not be used in classrooms (except gyms) or private offices without prior notice regarding purpose and use.
- c. Information derived from electronic surveillance will not be sued as the sole basis for the evaluation of an employee.
- d. The Union shall review the type and frequency of incidents involving employees and electronic surveillance as they relate to employee discipline and discuss concerns with the District during Labor Management meetings.

ARTICLE 20 - COMPLETE AGREEMENT

Section 1. The parties acknowledge that during the negotiations which resulted in this Agreement, each had the unlimited right and opportunity to make demands and proposals with respect to any subject or matter appropriate for collective bargaining and that the understandings and agreements arrived at by the parties after the exercise of that right and opportunity are set forth in full in this Agreement.

Section 2. The District and the Union, for the life of this Agreement, each voluntarily and unqualifiedly waives the right and each agrees that the other shall not be obligated to bargain collectively with respect to any subject or matter that was bargained over during the negotiations leading up to this Agreement. Otherwise, this provision is not a waiver of the right or obligation to bargain over proposed changes in mandatory subjects of bargaining.

APPENDIX A

CLASSIFIED SA Effective Jul							
Effective Jul	y 1, 2022 til	Step	50, 2023 Step	Step	Step	Step	Step
JOB TITLES	Grade	1	2	3	4	5	6
Courier	1	\$14.68	\$15.23	\$15.78	\$16.42	\$17.13	\$17.82
Courier School Assistant	2	\$15.23	\$15.78	\$16.42	\$17.13	\$17.82	\$18.54
	3	\$15.78	\$15.42	\$17.13	\$17.82	\$18.54	\$19.29
Receptionist Nutrition Services Assistant II	4	\$15.42	\$17.13	\$17.82	\$18.54	\$19.29	\$20.11
Nutrition Services Assistant II	5	J10.42	217.13	QII.UE	y.u	925.23	V = 0.00
Educational Assistant	5.5	\$17.49	\$18.15	\$18.90	\$19.72	\$20.54	\$21.36
Educational Assistant (Early Childhood Education)		7	. •	· · · · · ·			
Library Assistant			i		1		
Nutrition Services Assistant I	6	\$17.82	\$18.54	\$19.29	\$20.11	\$20.96	\$21.81
The second secon		411.0E	710.3 4	413.23	7	•	•
In-School Suspension							
Library Assistant - High School	7	\$18.54	\$19.29	\$20.11	\$20.96	\$21.81	\$22.71
	7.5	\$18.90	\$19.72	\$20.54	\$21.36	\$22.30	\$23.18
Special Educational Assistant	1.3	\$19'an	Ş13.7Z	Ş20.3 4	721.30	322,30	923.10
Site Supervisor		A40.70	č20.44	620 DE	\$21.81	\$22.71	\$23.71
Assistant Secretary	8	\$19.29	\$20.11	\$20.96	\$21.61	322.71	\$23./I
Assistant Secretary - Business							
Assistant Secretary - Maintenance							
Custodian							
Student Data System Specialist - Assistant							
Campus Monitor							
Athletic Secretary/Bookkeeper - High School					4		4
Speech Language Pathologist Assistant	. 9	\$20.11	\$20.96	\$21.81	\$22.71	\$23.71	\$24.70
Nutrition Services Lead							
Home School Contact	10	\$20.96	\$21.81	\$22.71	\$23.71	\$24.70	\$25.80
Home School Contact (Low Incidence Population)							
Home School Contact (Migrant Specialist)							
Home School Contact (Migrant on Track)		l					
Groundskeeper/Maintenance			1				
Lead Custodian							
Health Assistant	1						
Nutrition Services Specialist	ļ ·						1
Program Secretary	10.5	\$21.38	\$22.13	\$23.46	\$24.28	\$25.14	\$26.02
Head Custodian	11	\$21.81	\$22.71	\$23.71	\$24.70	\$25.80	\$26.97
Head Secretary				1			1
Head Custodian - High School, Valor/Heritage	12	\$22.71	\$23.71	\$24.70	\$25.80	\$26.97	\$28.17
Maintenance II	13			 	\$26.97	\$28.12	\$29.30
Career & Service Learning Specialist			'				1
Computer/Network Technician	1/	\$24.70	\$25.80	\$26.97	\$28.12	\$29.36	\$30.69
Early Childhood Education Instructor] .		1	1	• • • • • •	1	
Early Childhood Education Program Specialist							
Parent Involvement Specialist	4.0	\$27.03	\$28.24	\$29.48	\$30.80	\$32.18	\$33.6
Student Data System Specialist Computer Network Specialist	14.5	 			 		

APPENDIX B

CLASSIFIED SA Effective Ju		HEDULE rough lune :		24			-
		Step	Step	Step	Step	Step	Step
JOB TITLES	Grade	1	2	3	4	5	6
Courier	1	\$15.24	\$15.80	\$16.37	\$17.04	\$17.77	\$18.48
School Assistant	2	\$15.80	\$16.37	\$17.04	\$17.77	\$18.48	\$19.24
Receptionist	3	\$16.37	\$17.04	\$17.77	\$18.48	\$19.24	\$20.02
Nutrition Services Assistant II	4	\$17.04	\$17.77	\$18.48	\$19.24	\$20.02	\$20.87
	5	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00
Educational Assistant	5.5	\$18.15	\$18.83	\$19.61	\$20.46	\$21.31	\$22.16
Educational Assistant (Early Childhood Education)		-					
Library Assistant							
Nutrition Services Assistant I	6	\$18.48	\$19.24	\$20.02	\$20.87	\$21.74	\$22.63
In-School Suspension		,	•	-			
Library Assistant - High School							
,	7	\$19.24	\$20.02	\$20.87	\$21.74	\$22.63	\$23.57
Special Educational Assistant	7.5	\$19.61	\$20.46	\$21.31	\$22.16	\$23.13	\$24.05
Site Supervisor			,				
Assistant Secretary	8	\$20.02	\$20.87	\$21.74	\$22.63	\$23.57	\$24.60
Assistant Secretary - Business		1	, ,				
Assistant Secretary - Maintenance							
Custodian							
Student Data System Specialist - Assistant							
Campus Monitor							
Athletic Secretary/Bookkeeper - High School							
Speech Language Pathologist Assistant	9	\$20.87	\$21.74	\$22.63	\$23.57	\$24.60	\$25.63
Nutrition Services Lead	_		•	•	. *		
Home School Contact	10	\$21.74	\$22.63	\$23.57	\$24.60	\$25.63	\$26.7
Home School Contact (Low Incidence Population)		*	•				
Home School Contact (Migrant Specialist)							İ
Home School Contact (Migrant on Track)							
Groundskeeper/Maintenance							
Lead Custodian							
Health Assistant							
Nutrition Services Specialist					•		
Program Secretary	10.5	\$22.18	\$22.96	\$24.34	\$25.19	\$26.08	\$27.0
Head Custodian	11	 	\$23.57	\$24.60	\$25.63	\$26.77	\$27.9
Head Secretary		1	,	•	•	`	
Head Custodian - High School, Valor/Heritage	12	\$23.57	\$24.60	\$25.63	\$26.77	\$27.98	\$29.1
Maintenance II	13		\$25.63	\$26.77	\$27.98	\$29.18	\$30.4
Career & Service Learning Specialist		72-1100	4	7.20.1	1		
Computer/Network Technician	14	\$25.63	\$26.77	\$27.98	\$29.18	\$30.46	\$31.8
Early Childhood Education Instructor		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	\$25 (77			1	*
Early Childhood Education Program Specialist							
Parent Involvement Specialist							
	14.5	\$28.04	\$29.29	\$30.59	\$31.96	\$33.38	\$34.8
Student Data System Specialist Computer Network Specialist	14.5		·	\$33.27	\$34.73	+	

APPENDIX C

CLASSIFIED SALARY SCHEDULE 2024-2025

Effective July 1, 2024 through June 30, 2025

		Step	Step	Step	Step	Step	Step
JOB TITLES	Grade	1	2	3	4	5	6
Courier	1	\$15.81	\$16.39	\$16.98	\$17.68	\$18.44	\$19.18
School Assistant	2	\$16.39	\$16.98	\$17.68	\$18.44	\$19.18	\$19.96
Receptionist	3	\$16.98	\$17.68	\$18.44	\$19.18	\$19.96	\$20.77
Nutrition Services Assistant II	4	\$17.68	\$18.44	\$19.18	\$19.96	\$20.77	\$21.65
744718671941718	5		-				1
Educational Assistant	5.5	\$18.83	\$19.53	\$20.34	\$21.23	\$22.11	\$22.99
Educational Assistant (Early Childhood Education)				-			
Library Assistant	·					•	
Nutrition Services Assistant I	6	\$19.18	\$19.96	\$20.77	\$21.65	\$22.56	\$23.48
In-School Suspension						.	
Library Assistant - High School	****						
	7	\$19.96	\$20.77	\$21.65	\$22.56	\$23.48	\$24.45
Special Educational Assistant	7.5	\$20.34	\$21.23	\$22.11	\$22.99	\$24.00	\$24.95
Site Supervisor							
Assistant Secretary	8	\$20.77	\$21.65	\$22.56	\$23.48	\$24.45	\$25.52
Assistant Secretary - Business				-\$			
Assistant Secretary - Maintenance							
Custodian							
Student Data System Specialist - Assistant							
Campus Monitor							
Athletic Secretary/Bookkeeper - High School							
Speech Language Pathologist Assistant	9	\$21.65	\$22.56	\$23.48	\$24.45	\$25.52	\$26.59
Nutrition Services Lead	1						
Home School Contact	10	\$22.56	\$23.48	\$24.45	\$25.52	\$26.59	\$27.77
Home School Contact (Low Incidence Population)							
Home School Contact (Migrant Specialist)			,				
Home School Contact (Migrant on Track)							
Groundskeeper/Maintenance							
Lead Custodian							
Health Assistant							
Nutrition Services Specialist							
Program Secretary	10.5	\$23.02	\$23,82	\$25.26	\$26.14	\$27.06	\$28.01
Head Custodian	11	\$23.48	\$24.45	\$25.52	\$26.59	\$27.77	\$29.03
Head Secretary							
Head Custodian - High School, Valor/Heritage	12	\$24.45	\$25.52	\$26.59	\$27.77	\$29.03	\$30.27
Maintenance II	13	\$25.52	\$26.59	\$27.77	\$29.03	\$30.27	\$31.60
Career & Service Learning Specialist							
Computer/Network Technician	14	\$26.59	\$27.77	\$29.03	\$30.27	\$31.60	\$33.04
Early Childhood Education Instructor	ļ						
Early Childhood Education Program Specialist							
Parent Involvement Specialist							
Student Data System Specialist	14.5	\$29.09	\$30.39	\$31.74	\$33.16		
Computer Network Specialist	15	\$31.60	\$33.04	\$34.51	\$36.04	\$37.66	\$39.38

APPENDIX D

OSEA Official Grievance Form



Grievant's Name			Chapter				
Street Address			Home Phone	Work Phone			
City	State	Zip	Employer				
Classification		A144	Work Location				
Department			Supervisor				
OSEA Field Representative		Addyl-	Date Filed				
List applicable violated Article and Section							
Statement of Grievance							
Adjustment Required			e de la companya de				
I hereby authorize OSEA to representative to have full access resolved. Signature of Grievant Signature of	resent n	ne. I also gran	nt the Steward (nan personnel files unt	ned below) and the Field il such time as this grievance is Date			
Signature of Steward				Date			
Received by Employer				Date			
		Office Us Chapter	Year Grievan	ce # Type			

Note: Size adjusted to fit page